
CITY OF CORTLAND CABLE COMMISSION
Third Floor, City Hall, Mayor’s conference room

Monday, December 2, 2013

Present: Richard Menapace, Chair; James Forshee, Aaron Hamid, Lisa 
Kahle, Eamon O’Shea, and Sharon Stevans, Commissioners; 
Barbara Bergeron, Secretary

Quorum was present.

Chair Menapace called the meeting to order at 7:05 PM. 

Commissioner Hamid noted a correction to the September 9, 2013 minutes.  The 
wording needs changing on page 3, third paragraph, fifth sentence: Mayor Tobin 
expressed the need for Public Address communication – should read Public 
Access communication.  Commissioner Hamid advised he would invite Dick 
Tupper to the next appropriate meeting with Live Sports Video (LSV).

MOTION:  Commissioner Kahle made a motion to adopt the corrected minutes of 
September 9, 2013.  Commissioner Forshee seconded the motion, and the motion 
passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS:
Update on website:
Commissioner Stevans advised she, Mike (Michael Raite, LSV) and Commissioner 
Forshee, at Jim’s Suny Cortland classroom, uploaded five hours even though it had 
been compressed on a thumb drive.  Commissioner Forshee stated the need to 
have a link on the City website.  This material was not as compressed as it should 
have been.

Mike, Melanie (Arnold, local TWC), and Commissioner Stevans tried again at her 
house.  Mike will take anything previously produced.  Trouble finding it streaming, 
“no” archiving, but this time went 11/2 hoursvery good.  Commissioner Forshee 
again mentioned that this material would be accessible from any place. 
Commissioner Stevans would like to see how to speed up the process. 

Commissioner Hamid asked where the original upload was done, and 
Commissioner Forshee stated at the college using a black device, Pinacle MP7 on 
a 16 GIG thumb drive to do video and audio of a football game (21/2 hrs, 7 GIG).
Archived material in black and white.  We’re under Cortland Cable, archive, click 
and wait (when it works).  We need to recreate how to do it properly.

 



Eamon’s membership status:
Commissioner Stevans advised the City Common Council passed him, but he 
needs to be sworn in by the City Clerk.  Commissioner O’Shea remarked that he 
didn’t receive any letter or confirmation of the decision.  Commissioner Stevans 
added he had brought up “quality,” and was very sharp using his own portable 
internet.

Lifeline credit to eligible telephone households:
Chair Menapace announced, as advised by the Area Agency on Aging, this was 
available to eligible seniors who sign up for HEAP.

Cable rates: 
Chair Menapace talked again to Carol (McTague from NY State Dept. of Public 
Service) whether Cortland Cable Commission has control over basic cable rates. 
She advised the decision was still with Federal Cable Commission and not yet 
confirmed.

NEW BUSINESS:
TWC numerous updates on TV serviceChair Menapace and Commissioner
Stevans both had no internet service about three times last month.  She also talked 
to TWC who advised there had been a lot of changes across the board.
Commissioner O’Shea noted Comcast wants more business.  Money is in the data 
content and currently is one sided.  Chair Menapace asked what direction the CCC 
should take as there have been no outage reports, monthly or quarterly, and this he 
also mentioned to Carol.  Commissioner Hamid asked what leverage do we have; 
records, keep track of complaints; TWCpunitive, fines and compensation.  We 
should record and start counting.  Commissioner Stevans suggested CCC should 
also routinely advise David Whalen requesting reports. 

Commissioner Forshee believes we should look into a website for CCCC with 
places for TWC customers to register complaints, outages from when to when; 
news items regarding TWC.  Commissioner Stevans suggested asking for a link 
like the code office did on city website.  Where CCCC minutes are posted, we need 
links 1) to click on LSV, post emails to let people know what CCCC is doing; 2) 
Commissioner O’Shea suggested perhaps submit articles to the College website. 
Chair Menapace made a motion to allow CCCC request links to LSV and space for 
TWC customer feed back regarding complaints and outages from the City website. 
Commissioner Stevans seconded the motion, noting we should ask Mack Cook 
(Director of Administration and Finance), and then Sue Scott (Webmistress for City 
of Cortland).  She will give the LSV March invoice to Mr. Cook.  Commissioner 
Forshee reiterated that LSV was very accessible and we have not been charged by 
LSV to this point. 

Commissioner Stevans advised she will email CCCC members on how she made 
out.  The motion passed.



Commissioner Forshee suggested commissioners bring more ideas to the March 
meeting as to how we should proceed.  Someone will need to oversea the 
complaints; it’ll be challenging to manage. 

Commissioner O’Shea believes we should include, “What is a Cable 
Commission?” and need room for a short statement, mission statement especially 
advising CCCC has little power.  People are questioning TWC pricing and getting 
TWC regulated.  Commissioner Hamid advised the only power CCCC has is to 
yank the contract with TWC.  Commissioner O’Shea added, “Or pay TWC’s price 
tag.”  Commissioner Forshee stated the contract that is being used now was with a 
former cable company, Samson Communications.  TWC wanted to buy them out; 
maybe Comcast will buyout TWC.  Commissioner Kahle stated the CCCC “mission 
statement” is already on the City website and believes we need to let Mayor Tobin 
and the Common Council about our struggles with TWC.  Commissioner Hamid 
added contract, powers and obligations, annual report, annual hearing. 
Commissioner Forshee said the hearing could be streamed; all live streaming is 
stored.  Commissioner Stevans would also like to see a website with a complaint 
section.  Chair Menapace agreed with format of “frequently asked questions.” 
Commissioner O’Shea would like to have mentioned CCCC has no control but will 
pass along the customers’ input regarding TWC pricing.

Chair Menapace announced Commissioner Aaron Hamid will be the new Chair 
beginning January 1, 2014.  Chair Menapace will assume the Deputy Chair position 
at that time.

Motion: Commissioner Stevans then made a motion to accept these position 
changes and have recorded in the minutes the wonderful job Chair Menapace has 
done for CCCC.  Commissioner O’Shea seconded the motion and the motion 
passed unanimously.

Chair Menapace then made a motion to appoint Commissioner Stevans as 
ViceChair.  Commissioner Forshee seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously.   Commissioner Stevans then thanked Barb for taking minutes of 
CCCC meetings.

The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 3, 2013, 7:00 PM Mayor’s 
conference room, City Hall.

Chair Menapace then closed the meeting at 7:51 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

 
Barbara Bergeron


